

liability is not covered by the provisions of the standard homeowner's or automobile insurance policy. The insurance shall not cover property owned by the foster parents, damage caused intentionally by a child over 12 years of age, or property damage arising out of business pursuits or the operation of any vehicle, machinery, or equipment.

Sec. 2. There is appropriated from the general fund to the commissioner of public welfare \$122,000 for the purpose of purchasing and providing liability insurance for foster boarding homes, as provided in section 1, to be available until June 30, 1979.

Approved June 2, 1977.

CHAPTER 361—H.F.No.176

An act relating to drivers licenses; providing for the issuance of Minnesota identification cards and the use thereof; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 171.07, Subdivisions 3, 4 and 5; and 340.039.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 171.07, Subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **DRIVERS LICENSES; IDENTIFICATION CARDS.** Upon payment of the required fee for a driver's license bearing a colored photograph, the department may issue to every applicant; ~~the age of 16 years or over,~~ who does not physically qualify for a driver's license, or any person not currently licensed to drive, who does not intend to apply for a driver's license under this section or who wishes to discontinue driving and surrenders his current driver's license, a ~~nonqualification certificate~~ Minnesota identification card. The ~~certificate card~~ shall bear thereon a distinguishing number assigned to the applicant, the full name, date of birth, residence address, a description of the applicant in such manner as the commissioner deems necessary, and a space upon which the applicant shall write his usual signature with pen and ink.

Each ~~nonqualification certificate~~ Minnesota identification card shall be on an all plastic or laminated plastic card of a distinguishing color and plainly marked "non-driver." The fee for a Minnesota identification card issued to any person who is mentally retarded, as defined in section 252A.02, subdivision 2, shall be 50 cents.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 171.07, Subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. The expiration date of ~~each nonqualification certificate~~ Minnesota identification cards of applicants under the age of 65 shall be the birthday of the applicant in the fourth year following the date of issuance of the ~~nonqualification certificate card~~. ~~Nonqualification certificates~~ Minnesota identification cards issued to applicants age 65 or over shall be valid for the lifetime of the applicant.

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 171.07, Subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. The department may provide a donor document to each person making application for a driver's license or a ~~nonqualification certificate~~ Minnesota identification card whereby any such person, 18 years of age or more, may execute an anatomical gift, pursuant to the provisions of the uniform anatomical gift act, sections 525.921 to 525.93. The commissioner of public safety shall prescribe the form of the donor document. The donor document must be signed by the donor in the presence of two witnesses who must sign the donor document in the donor's presence. If the donor cannot sign, the donor document may be signed for the donor at the donor's direction, in the donor's presence, and in the presence of two witnesses who must sign the donor document in the donor's presence. The department shall identify donors of anatomical gifts by the designation "donor" on the front side of the donor's driver's license or ~~nonqualification certificate~~ Minnesota identification card. The designation "donor" shall constitute sufficient legal authority for the removal of all body organs or parts upon death of the donor for the purpose of transplantation and the designation shall be removed only upon written notice to the department. No designation may be noted upon the driver's license or ~~nonqualification certificate~~ Minnesota identification card of any person under 18. Delivery of the license or ~~nonqualification certificate~~ Minnesota identification card during the donor's lifetime is not necessary to make the gift valid.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 340.039, is amended to read:

340.039 **DRIVER'S LICENSE OR MINNESOTA IDENTIFICATION CARD.** Proof of age for purposes of consuming, purchasing, or possessing an alcoholic beverage, the consumption, sale, or possession of which is regulated by age, may only be established by a valid driver's license or a current ~~nonqualification certificate~~ Minnesota identification card issued pursuant to ~~Minnesota Statutes 1974~~, section 171.07.

Sec. 5. **EFFECTIVE DATE.** This act is effective August 2, 1977.

Approved June 2, 1977.

CHAPTER 362—H.F.No.180

[Not Coded]

An act relating to health; appropriating money to fund a program of graduate training in family practice for physicians.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. **MAYO FOUNDATION; APPROPRIATION FOR FAMILY PRACTICE PROGRAM.** There is appropriated from the general fund in the state treasury to the Mayo foundation for use in its graduate program in family practice of medicine the sums of \$12,000 per student up to a maximum of \$48,000 during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1978. The Mayo foundation shall submit a report to the state

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~